
 
Staff Report 

 

 

TO:  City Council 

FROM: Jennifer Ustation, Finance Director 

DATE September 20, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Cost of Services Study 
  

Background and Analysis:  

State and local governments use charges and fees to help fund services. The 

Government Finance Officers Association recommends that when a certain service 

provided especially benefit a particular group, then the government should consider 

charges and fees on the direct recipients of those that receive benefits from such 

services.  

 

As such, the City of Beaumont’s Financial Management Policy states that the City will 

attempt to recover the costs of services providing a private benefit to users through the 

imposition of user fees and charges. The fees and charges will be based on cost 

accounting standards consistent with state and federal law when applicable. Fees and 

charges should include full costs i.e. direct, indirect, depreciation, interest charges, etc. 

and the Finance Director will ensure an annual user fee and charges schedule is 

regularly updated and approved by council.  

 

The last fee study was completed and adopted by the City Council in October 2017. 

The City issued a request for proposals (RFP) on September 28, 2021, for a Cost 

Allocation and Comprehensive User Fee Study. The RFP stated the City’s desire to 

examine whether a reasonable relationship exists between the cost of providing 

services and the City’s current user fee schedule with significant consideration to recent 

state and municipal statutory code changes and requirements under Proposition 218 

and 26. A contract was approved with Revenue and Cost Specialists on December 7, 

2021, to prepare a Cost Allocation and Comprehensive User Fee Study. 

 

The City Council adopted the Cost Allocation Plan that was prepared by RCS as a part 

of their contract on June 21, 2022. In addition to collecting the direct cost of labor and 

materials associated with processing and administering user services, it is common for 

local governments to recover indirect support costs. Indirect costs are those costs 



relating to a local government’s central service departments (i.e. Finance, Human 

Resources, and City Clerk) that are properly allocated to the local government’s 

operating departments. The Cost Allocation Plan was then used to provide indirect 

overhead percentages to determine the burden placed upon central services by the 

operating departments to allocate a proportionate share of central services costs. 

 

Revenue and Cost Specialists (RCS) has prepared a detailed user fee analysis which is 

included in this report as Attachment A. This analysis was designed to provide the city 

with a systematic and documented approach to understand, control, and recapture the 

costs which are forced on it by normal service demands, growth, and general economic 

inflation.  

 

Methodology 

 

The methodology used for this analysis is the “costs reasonably borne” test established 

by Section 8c of Proposition 4, now Article XIIIB of the California Constitution. This 

methodology determines the full business cost of providing the reported City services. It 

also identifies the beneficiaries of those services and determines if they are paying in 

relationship to benefits derived or if they are deserving of a subsidy paid from the taxes 

paid by all local citizens and businesses.  

 

Identifying Service Center 

 

The “service revenue,” fee or charge for service, and the related “service cost” comprise 

a “service center”. RCS used the following steps to identify service center: 

 

1. Identify services offered by the City 

2. Service costs are calculated 

3. Review revenue currently received and match to the cost of providing the service 

to determine if there is a subsidy from taxes. 

 

RCS met with City staff from each department, developed a list of services, and then 

allocated staff time to the appropriate service. Multiple meetings with staff were 

conducted to ensure that all available staff time was allocated and represented an 

accurate allocation.  

 

Service costs calculated include the following types of costs: 

 

 Salaries and wages 

 Employee fringe benefits 



 Maintenance and operation costs 

 General and departmental overhead costs (identified in Cost Allocation Plan 

(CAP)) 

 

General City overhead are services who primarily set policy and support other 

departments without providing a deliverable service to the public. If these departments 

do perform an end-user service, then they have not been included. Costs in the general 

administration category include the following: 

 
All the above costs make up the fully allocated hourly rate which is calculated for each 

position in the city. The makeup of each component of the City-wide fully allocated 

hourly rate is detailed in the chart below: 

 



 
 

The study accounts for all revenue but focuses on the relationship between fees and 

taxes. RCS then determined what total service costs for each fee are and whether the 

revenue received supports the total cost or if the service is subsidized by taxes. The 

schedule provided in the report on page 19-23 shows that the city provides $9.5M in fee 

services annually, and only recovers $7.5M from fee revenues. Each year, an additional 

$2M, coming from other funding sources, is needed to pay for these fee services as 

outlined in the table below. 

 

 
 

Service Groups 

 

RCS suggests that services that are Personal Choice as opposed to Community 

Supported Services should be paid for by the service requestor rather than subsidized 

by the entire community, however, the City Council has final decision on the nature of 

the service and whether it deserves to be subsidized. 

 



Personal Choice Services in the report have been categorized into the following service 

groups: 

 

1. Community Development Services 

2. Public Safety Services 

3. Leisure & Cultural Services 

4. Enterprise Services 

5. Administration Services 

 

Community Development Services 

 

The tables on pages 27-29 of Attachment A include services provided by the 

Community Development Service Group. Development services provided to individuals 

and businesses account for $3,804,984 in total service cost recovery revenue for the 

City through fees. The City is able to recover 94.3% from the current fees, and RCS’ 

suggested fees will potentially recover an additional $255,550 for the City if all 

recommended fees are approved. 

 



 



 



 
 

 

Public Safety Services 

 

The tables on pages 30-31 of Attachment A include services provided by the Public 

Safety Service Group. Public safety services provided to individuals and businesses 

account for $376,296 in total service cost recovery revenue for the for the City through 

fees. The City is able to recover 34.8% from the current fees, and RCS’ suggested fees 

will potentially recover an additional $234,850 for the City if all recommendations are 

approved.  



 

 
 

Liesure and Cultural Services 

 

The table on page 52 of Attachment A include services provided for the Leisure and 

Cultural Service Group. These types of services provided account for $149,770 in total 



service cost recovery revenue for the City through fees. The City is able to recover 9% 

from the current fees. The findings suggest that a subsidy level exists for leisure and 

cultural activities. RCS recommends that leisure and cultural service cost recovery 

goals be set as a percentage of their program costs. They also suggest that the City 

Council develop a conscious policy as to what programs and service centers, and to 

what extent, should be subsidized with tax monies in promoting social benefit.  

 

 
 

Enterprise Services 

 

Enterprise services represents the enterprising operations within the City, such as 

transit services and wastewater services. RCS recommended new fees within this 

category could potentially recover an additional $44,700 for the wastewater enterprise 

fund.  

 

 
 

Administrative Services  

 

The table on page 34 of Attachment A includes services provided for Administrative 

Services Group. These types of services provided account for $85,789 in total service 

cost recovery to the City through fees. The City is able to recover 34.6% from the 

current fees, and RCS’ suggested fees will potentially recover an additional $167,200 

for the City if all recommendations are approved.  



 
 

Recommendations 

 

If all RCS recommendations and suggestions are adopted, the City would potentially 

raise $702,300 on an annual basis. The table on page 35 of Attachment A shows that 

the City is subsidizing $1,975,970 of Personal Choice Services with City tax dollars. 

Should the City Council feel that tax dollars are insufficient, or use for different 

purposes, this report has shown that there are opportunities to either increase the user 

fees or lower the cost of Personal Choice Services.  

 

RCS recommends that the City adopt a Master Fee Resolution which the Finance 

Department updates and the City Council adopts annually. It is also recommended that 

the City Council adopt a policy of not starting any new service without a cost analysis, 

using the costing approach utilized in this report, to determine ways in which the service 

could be fee-financed, if possible.  

 

Next Steps 

 

City staff anticipates that it will take time to go through the 435-page report It is 

suggested that a special workshop is scheduled to go through the items that the City 

Council would like to review in detail. Government code 66017 requires entities taking 

any action adopting a fee or charge, or increasing a fee or charge adopted upon a 

development project shall be enacted in accordance with the notice and public hearing 

procedures and shall be effective no sooner than 60 days following the final action on 

the adoption of the fee or charge or increase in the fee or charge.  

 

 

 



Fiscal Impact: 

There is no fiscal impact until the actual fee schedule is updated and adopted. The cost 

to prepare this report is estimated to be $445. 

 

Recommended Action: 

Set a date, time and place for a special workshop and provide direction to City 

staff on the material they would like to see at that workshop.  

Attachments: 

A. Cost of Services Study for the City of Beaumont 

B. RCS Presentation 


